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MEMORANDUM 

TO: Alcoholic Beverage Control Board DATE: October 22, 2021 
 

RE: #5317 Muse Transfer  
FROM: Carrie Craig, RLS with Kristina 

Serezhenkov, OLE 
 
 

Statutory & 
Regulatory 

 

Authority: 
AS 04.11.100(b) Restaurant or Eating Place license 
“A license may be issued under this section only if the board determines that the premises to be licensed are a bona 
fide restaurant or eating place.” 

 
AS 04.16.049 Access of persons under the age of 21 to licensed premises 

a) A person under 21 years of age may not knowingly enter or remain in premises licensed under this title 
unless 

1) accompanied by a parent, guardian, or spouse who has attained 21 years of age; 
2) the person is at least 16 years of age, the premises are designated by the board as a restaurant for 

the purposes of this section, and the person enters and remains only for dining; 
3) the person is under 16 years of age, is accompanied by a person over 21 years of age, the parent 

or guardian of the underaged person consents, the premises are designated by the board as a 
restaurant for the purposes of this section, and the person enters and remains only for dining 

 
3 AAC 304.305 Restaurant or Eating Place License 

a) In AS 04.11.100 and this section, a "bona fide restaurant or eating place" is an establishment, or portion 
of an establishment, where, during all times that beer or wine is served or consumed, 

1) the patron's principal activity is consumption of food; and 
2) a variety of types of food items appropriate for meals is available for sale as shown on a menu 

provided to patrons and filed with the board; 
b) In considering an application for issuance, transfer, or relocation of a restaurant or eating place license, 

the board will determine the portion of the premises or proposed premises that constitutes a restaurant or 
eating place, and will license only that portion for the sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages. 

 
3 AAC 304.910 Restaurant Definition 

a) The board will use the following guidelines when determining what qualifies as a bona fide restaurant or 
eating place: 

1) the applicant demonstrates minimum standards for a kitchen to prepare food onsite, in 
accordance with 18 AAC 31.040(c) or municipal ordinance; 

2) the applicant provides a menu of food items, including entrees, that are regularly sold and 
prepared by the licensee on the licensed premises; 

3) the establishment has tables or counters for consuming food in a dining area on the premises; 
and 

4) the applicant includes a detailed plan to 
A. prevent access to alcohol by minors; and 
B. ensure that introduction or removal of alcoholic beverages is in compliance with AS 

04.16.120. 



Background: At the August 17, 2021 meeting, the board heard from staff, the applicant and their counsel, Sherman Ernouf 
and after discussion, the board voted to table the consideration of the transfer application pending more information regarding 
the proposed premises.  

 

On August 31st, Director Klinkhart, Rick Helms and Carrie Craig meet with the applicant and Mr. Ernouf to review a proposal 
to remove the 4th floor from the proposed licensed premises, which staff was agreeable to.   

 
Previous Background: At the July 9, 2019 ABC meeting, the board considered the transfer of a Restaurant/Eating Place 
license #5317 from NANA Management Services, LLC to Muse with Laura Cole (current transferor). Staff recommendation 
at that time was to ask the board to reduce the proposed licensed premises only to the restaurant area (in accordance with AS 
04.06.090(c)) and approve the transfer. 

 
At the time, Director McConnell had referenced the above statutes and regulations in the board memo and expressed concern 
that the operation of the license would not be compliant with the requirements for a Restaurant/Eating Place license, as well as 
the risk of museum patrons under the age of 21 and not accompanied by a parent or guardian entering the premises. 

 
The board listened to testimony from Sherman Ernouf and Dan Coffey, legal counsel for the licensee, and Brian Steele (Deputy 
Director of Anchorage Museum) in which they said they understood the Director’s concerns but the premises had been licensed 
for years in a similar manner. They were concerned about the time and effort it would take to address statute issues and 
proposing changes with the legislature, so they asked the board to allow them to keep their previous approved licensed premises. 
The board unanimously agreed, but there were some concerns from Member Rex Leath with approving a license that did not 
seem to match the statute. 

 
With this current transfer of ownership application in the Municipality of Anchorage, the applicant and their counsel are 
requesting a similar, yet slightly reduced licensed premises as the 2019 proposal. 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Staff asks the board to consider the new proposed licensed premises, decide if it is in accordance with AS 04.06.090(c) and 
approve the transfer with delegation. 

 
 

Attachments: Sherman Ernouf’s Updated Memo 
 2021 Proposed Premises pages  

Current Approved Premises pages  
2019 Proposed Premises pages 
AB – 01 pages 
AB – 03 pages 
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LAW OFFICES OF ERNOUF & COFFEY, P.C. 
P.O. BOX 212314 

ANCHORAGE, ALASKA 99521  
 (907) 274-3385 

 
MEMO TO ALCOHOL BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD  

                       
TO:  CHAIRMAN WALUKIEWICZ, MEMBERS OF ALCOHOL 

BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD 
 
FROM:  W. SHERMAN ERNOUF 
 
RE:   ANCHORAGE MUSEUM (MUSE) PREMISES REDUCTION  
 
DATE: October 25, 2021 
 
At the September 2021 ABC Board Meeting, the Board tabled 
consideration of the transfer of a restaurant eating place liquor license to 
the Anchorage Museum at the Museum’s request and due to concern 
voiced by the Board over the size of the premises being proposed.   
 
After the Board meeting, we met with the Director and his team to 
discuss potential solutions to address the Board’s concerns.  The 
outcome of the meeting was positive and we believe resulted in a solution 
that will work for the Museum, this Board, and which is appropriate 
under Title 4 of Alaska law.  
 
First, the whole fourth floor has now been excluded from the premises 
diagram.  As you will recall, this was one of the main concerns voiced by 
staff and this Board.  This space been eliminated and will be utilized 
using catering and/or special events permits when needed.  
 
Second, alcohol service will be contained to the Muse Restaurant and the 
Museum’s Kiosk/Atrium area.  This area is a confined space which can 
be monitored and secured by the Museum’s roaming security team, food 
service employees who will be TAP trained, and by their security team 
monitoring video surveillance.   
 
Lastly, private functions and events will occur in the Muse and in the 
Atrium and Kiosk areas.  These private events would be for adults and no 
minors would be on the premises.   
 
The Anchorage Museum respectfully requests approval of the transfer 
with the reduced premises discussed herein.   
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